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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 ‘

The governors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2020.

The company was formed on 23 February 2010 and the academy opened in September 2012.

EDUCATION FOR LIFE, SKILLS FOR THE FUTURE

Aston University Engineering Academy is a mixed University Technical College, specialising in engineering and
science, situated in Birmingham city centre, adjacent to the Aston University campus. Our mission statement is
“Engineering and science excellence for 13-19 year olds in Birmingham providing an Education for life and skills
for the future”.

The UTC is non-selective and students apply to transfer to AUEA during year 9 from schools across
Birmingham and in some cases outside the city boundaries. Research evidence (IDACI) confirms that a
significantly high proportion of pupils currently reside in the UK's poorest 10% of postcode areas. The academy
is attended by a wide diversity of students as evidenced by 17 of 17 Ofsted ethnic groups (IDSR) and is in the
top 20% of schools nationally for English as an additional language and free school meals.

The number of students on roll after eight years has exceeded our capacity of 600, currently being at 722. This
success is a direct result of the growing reputation of the UTC, unique subjects offered and outstanding
destinations for our 18 year old graduates.

Number of Students on Roll
Year 2019/20 2020/21
Year 9 80] 81
Year 10 80 79
Year 11 130 76
Year 12 236 257
Year 13 & 14 158 229
Total 684 722

Significant change to UTC

2019/20 saw the highly successful implementation of the Secretary of State approved significant change to the
UTC, for an earlier Year of Entry to the technical college. In comparison to prior years where students were
admitted at age 14 (Year 10), September 2019 launched our new Year 9 cohort. This change also resulted in a
significant reduction to Pupil Admission Numbers (PAN) from 120 down to 81 to accommodate additional
numbers in the Sixth Form.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital (Registration Number: 07166427)
and is an exempt charity. The charitable company’'s memorandum and articles of association are the primary
governing documents of the academy trust. The trustees of Aston University Engineering Academy
Birmingham Limited are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The
charitable company is known as Aston University Engineering Academy Birmingham.

Details of the trustees who served during the year except as noted are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 3.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees' Indemnities
Aston University Engineering Academy Birmingham has in place Directors and Trustees liability insurance
indemnity cover to a limit of £1m.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 (cont'd)

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The constitution of the Board of Trustees is as follows:

e Up to 6 Aston University Governors

e Up to 5 Co-opted Governors

® 2 Parent Governors (KS4 and KS5)
2 Staff Governors (teaching and support staff representatives)
The Principal

The Vice Chancellor of Aston University appoints the Aston University Trustees. This is as ex officio Governors.
The Principal is also an ex officio Governor.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The Board of Trustees makes all necessary arrangements for, and determines all other matters relating to, the
election of the Staff Governors and Parent Trustees.

Parent Trustees are elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy. A Parent Trustee must be a parent
of a pupil at the Academy during their term of office; similarly a Staff Trustee must be a member of staff at the
Academy during their period of office.

Trustees can also appoint up to 5 Co-opted Trustees. Those who can be involved in this appointment are
Trustees who have been appointed via the Sponsor, LA, parents, employers, etc. A Co-opted Trustee, however,
is not eligible to be involved in the appointment of another Co-opted Trustee. With the exception of the
appointment of Co-opted Trustees, all Co- opted Trustees have the same level of authority as any other
Trustee. Co-opted Trustees are usually appointed because of their expertise in a particular area.

The term of office for all Trustees is 4 years, except for the Principal, who will remain a member of the Board of
Trustees whilst they serve in this capacity. Subject to remaining ellglble to be a particular type of Trustee, any
Trustee may be re-appointed or re-elected.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The Board of Trustees believes that in order to fulfil its responsibilities effectively, it is essential that each

member is committed to a shared vision for the Academy and that the Board of Trustees is working well as a

team to achieve this. To help new Trustees to feel able to take an active part within the Board of Trustees and

be valued as an equal member of the team, new Trustees undergo a period of planned support to introduce
them to their new role. The Board of Trustees ensures that the following steps are taken:

a) The Chair of Trustees sends a letter welcoming the new Trustee to the team and offering them the
opportunity to meet before the first formal Board of Trustees meeting.

b) The Principal invites the new Trustee to visit the Academy and experience its atmosphere and understand
its ethos and receive an informal briefing on the Academy from the Principal to explain the partnership
between the Principal, AUEA and Board of Trustees.

c) When a new Trustee attends their first meeting, the Chair of Trustees welcomes them and introduces them
to the other Trustees. Trustees are asked to introduce themselves and describe any particular
interests/experience they have and the new Trustee is given the opportunity to say something about
himself/herself.

d) The new Trustee is invited to join a relevant forum or forums. If they wish, they can be given the opportunity
to attend and observe forum meetings before making a decision about which forums they might like to join.

e) Alink Trustee is appointed to take responsibility for inducting every new Trustee.

All Trustees are issued with a copy of the Trustees Handbook which provides a wide range of information and
guidance relating to the governance of the Academy. Trustees are also requested to complete the on-line
EduCare/NGA First Certificate in Governance to ensure that they have grounding in the role of an Academy
Trustee. The Academy also subscribes to the National Trustees Association (NGA) (Gold Membership) which
enables Trustees to access a range of useful NGA online materials and conferences/meetings held on topical
issues.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 (cont'd) .'
Organisational Structure
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The Articles of Association set out the arrangements for the governance and management of the Academy. The
Board of Trustees and its Strategy Forums monitor the performance of the Senior Leadership Team and assure
and enhance the quality and standards of teaching and learning, as well as monitoring and enhancing the
quality of the pupil experience, and ensuring the safety and well-being of staff and students. The Senior
Leadership Team supports the Principal in providing strategic leadership and management to ensure that the
Academy remains a financially and academically successful institution, operating in accordance with the
strategic goals, policies and processes approved by the Board of Trustees.

The Board of Trustees normally meets once in each of the three academic terms. The Board has established a
framework for the governance of the Academy and agrees membership of its strategy forums and other
statutory committees and panels. It receives reports, and policy documents, from its Strategy Forums for
ratification. It monitors the activities of the Forums through the minutes of their meetings. It also establishes and
reviews their terms of reference and procedures. The Board of Trustees may also, from time to time, establish
task groups to perform specific tasks over a limited timescale. The Board aims to ensure that the leadership and
governance of the AUEA is strategic, highly effective and geared towards 'outstanding'.

The governance framework supports the following key principles:

® Trustees work as an effective team and understand their accountability and the part they play in the
strategic leadership of the academy and in driving academy improvement;

® Trustees with the necessary skills are appointed to the governing body and tasks are delegated so that all
members contribute, feel that their individual skills, knowledge and experience are well used and that the
overall work load is shared;

e The Board of Trustees provides support, challenge and encouragement to the Principal and Senior
Leadership Team;

® Ensuring Academy improvement is the focus of all policy and strategy and that Trustee monitoring reflects
Academy improvement priorities;

e Ensuring that statutory requirements and regulations are met, that the academy provides value for money in
its use of resources and that governing body business is conducted efficiently and effectively.

There are three Strategy Forums as follows:

® The Leadership and Finance Forum (LFF) which meets at least three times a year. Its primary purpose is to
review and agree the key finance, resource and organisational matters of the academy, and to act as an
Audit Committee;

e The Learning and Progress forums (LPF) meets at least six times a year. The primary purpose of the
Forum is to set and support the Senior Leadership Team in ensuring that the majority of teaching is
outstanding and results in high levels of attainment and progression of pupils, through the development and
delivery of innovative and employer enabled curriculum; and
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Organisational Structure (Cont'd)

e The Partnerships Forum (LDF) meets at least three times a year in conjunction with AUEA’s industry
advisory group. The primary purpose of the Forum is to advise and support the Senior Leadership Team to
develop outstanding and aspirational approaches for the, guidance and support for outstanding progression
of students from AUEA.

The governance framework is aligned to the four key judgments from the OfSTED inspection framework as

follows:
The achievement of pupils at
OfSTED The behaviour and Safety of | The quality of leadership and| the school. The quality of | The overall effectiveness of
Judgement pupils at the school management at the school teaching at the school the school
Strategy Forum | Learning and Progress forum |Leadership and Finance Forum| Learning and Progress forum Full Board of Trustees
SLT Assistant Principal = Learner . . Vlcg Bnnc;pal aqd Assistant -
. Principal Business Manager Principal - Curriculum and Principal
Representative Development
Assessment

The Board of Trustees has the following responsibilities: ,

® to determine any proposals for the alteration, closure or change of category of the academy; to amend the
constitution of the governing body;

® to appoint or remove the Chairman and/or Vice Chairman; to appoint the Secretary to the Trustees; to
suspend Trustees; to determine the ethos of the school; to delegate specific responsibilities to any Trustee,
Forum, Committee, the Principal or other holder of an executive office, and to determine and review
annually the terms of reference, constitution and membership of all Forums and Committees;

® to publish an annual prospectus;

® to decide school session times and dates of school terms and holidays; to make arrangement for staff
dismissal appeals;

e to set up panels for the selection of the Principal; to develop, monitor and review the academy 's Freedom
of Information Publication Scheme;

¢ to approve the annual Development Plan and

® to monitor the annual Register of Interests.

The Board of Trustees and its Leadership and Finance Forum reviews the academy's strategic risk register at
regular intervals. The Board has reviewed the major risks, focusing on operational, financial, governance,
compliance and reputational risk, and received reports on the steps taken by the academy to mitigate likely
risks. The Board of Trustees is satisfied that the major risks identified have been adequately mitigated where
necessary. It is recognised, however, that systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that
major risks have been adequately managed.

The Principal also regularly presents Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to the Board of Trustees to enable it to
monitor the progress of the academy against its strategic targets.

The Principal is the Accounting Officer as required by the Funding Agreement with the Department for
Education. The Principal is supported by the Senior Leadership Team, including the Business Manager. The
Vice Principal assists the Principal in the management of the Academy and acts as his deputy. The Assistant
Principals are senior appointees who assist the Principal in specific areas of the work of the Academy, including
the delivery of the institutional strategic objectives. The Senior Leadership Team (SLT) manages the Academy
Trust at an executive level, implements the policies laid down by Trustees and reports back to them. The SLT is
responsible for developing and implementing AUEA's plans that seek to deliver the best possible outcomes for
its students within the agreed budget and scheme of delegation approved by Trustees.
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Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials Numbers FTEs
Employees who were union officials during the relevant period Nil Nil
Percentage of time spent on Employee Numbers
Percentage of time
0% Nil
1% - 50% Nil
51% - 99% Nil
100% Nil
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Total cost of facility time £Nil
Total pay bill £Nil
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time, calculated as:
(total cost of facility time + total pay bill) x 100 Nil%

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time

hours calculated as:

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by relevant union officials during the Nil%
relevant period + total paid facility time hours) x 100

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
Pay and remuneration of the Principal is undertaken by a delegated sub-committee of the governing board and
in line with the National Standard of Head teachers 2016, against rigorous annual KPls.

AUEA also operates a rigorous Performance Review process, based on national best practice and supported by
exemplary use of the appraisal product ‘Bluesky Education software’. This software tracks each member of
staff's performance across the year against a set number of agree targets, allowing the upload of clear evidence
and systematic checking and ratification progress and success. This generates the recommended list of pay
and remuneration which is reviewed by the chair and ratified by the full governing board.

Connected Organisations including Related Party Relationships
Aston University is the sponsor of Aston University Engineering Academy Birmingham.

Baker Dearing Trust (BDT) acts as the National body for UTCs and via membership AUEA gain access to
specialists in finance, marketing, and school improvement. Through regional and national meetings our BDT
membership allows greater success and reduced risk. The Principal Daniel Locke-Wheaton sits as a member of
the core Principal body (unpaid).

Titan Education Trust, is a charitable trust which supports the widening participation of students in our area of
Birmingham. It also holds the responsibility for the management of the North West Sharing Panel (the body
which deals with those students at risk of exclusion) and the North area Head teachers. The Principal Daniel
Locke-Wheaton sits as a director (unpaid) on the Executive team for Titan.

South Bromsgrove Academy acts at the link teaching school responsible for supporting the UTC improvement
priorities. This includes monitoring visits, sharing best practice, quality assurance and leadership staff training.
Consequently South Bromsgrove receives a direct DFE grant of £20k to provide these services at no cost to
AUEA.

Infraskills/RSS/Auctus - Infrastructure sector-based local SME Group of companies, providing training
opportunities and support for careers into the rail sector. Students achieve the necessary competencies,
through a mixture of both classroom and practical training, led by INFRA Skills a Gold accredited National Skills
Academy for Rail (NSAR) training provider, and further opportunities for work placements through RSS
Infrastructure. Governor Richard Toy is CEO. As a provider for enhanced work placements for AUEA students,
they are entitled to ESFA Employer capacity delivery funds.

Jacobs - One of the worlds largest Engineering and Infrastructure companies, Jacobs is a provider for
enhanced work placements for AUEA students, so is entitled to ESFA Employer capacity delivery funds. Jacob’s
Daniel Hickman sits on AUEA’s Industry Advisory Board.
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'TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 (cont'd)

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

There are so many things that makes Aston University Engineering Academy and Aston University Sixth form
unique, but one of the key differences is being a university technical college. This means that as well as getting
a great experience you have access to additional opportunities and resources many unavailable in other schools
and colleges.

These include:

® A highly focused technical curriculum including Tech Bacc utilising the latest professional equipment.

e High calibre Industry opportunities including Employer Projects, visits, extensive work experience and
professional qualifications.

¢ Unique location at Aston University Campus and Innovation Birmingham providing additional learning and
access to specialist teaching and facilities.

e Aston University Engineering Academy, has one of the largest Combined Cadet Forces Contingents in the
UK made up of over 100 students from all year groups. They participate weekly in training, and
extracurricular activities including learning how to fly. The RAF, specifically RAF Cosford, sponsor this.

® Amazing Sports and Clubs utilising Sport Aston facilities and Redpoint Climbing. Football and Cricket
supported by Aston Villa and English Cricket Board along with our DofE programme.

¢ Frequent and Diverse Trips both in the UK and abroad as part of the curriculum and also wider enrichment.
This includes the opportunity to study a year abroad with our Austria Partner school HTL Modling.

We teach students technical and scientific subjects in a whole new way and are educating the inventors,
engineers, scientists and technicians of tomorrow.

A key aspect of 'What makes us different’ is our focus on the wider enrichment through our employer linked
project curriculum and club night. Ensuring that students leave Aston University Sixth Form with not only high
academic outcomes but a wider holistic experience, maximising their potential.

In accordance with the articles of association, the charitable company has adopted a "Scheme of Government”
approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The Scheme of Government specified, amongst other things,
the basis for admitting students to the Academy, the catchment area from which the students are drawn, and
that the curriculum should align itself with the substance of the national curriculum, the University Technical
College vision and the specialisms of engineering and science.
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Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Academy, as set out in the Articles of Association, is specifically restricted to the
following: to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, by establishing, maintaining,
carrying on, managing and developing a school offering a broad curriculum with a strong emphasis on, but in no
way limited to engineering, manufacturing, business and enterprise.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
Aston University Engineering Academy will be nationally recognised as a centre of excellence in providing the
very best engineering and technical education for successful and rewarding careers. The Academy will achieve
this by:
o Working in partnership with its students, their parents, the University, regional and national employers, the
professional bodies, local schools and the community;
e Having high aspirations and expectations of its staff and students in both professional and personal
development;
® Fostering values that equip students for success;
® Providing every student with an industrial sponsor, a university student mentor and a personalized pathway
through and beyond the Academy; ‘
e (Creating an inspirational learning community within which everyone is empowered to be a learner, a teacher
and a leader;
® Developing and delivering a challenging and innovative employer led curriculum that is applied and
focused on the industrial and business world to prepare students for employment, apprenticeships or higher
education; and
® |nvolving staff and students in the continuous improvement of life in the Academy, through reflection,
research and publication of practice.

This will be achieved through close collaboration and in partnership with staff, parents, our local community,
other educational establishments and our key stakeholders.

The Academy will ensure that children and young people achieve in their learning and in their chosen
progression pathways post 16.

Underpinning this vision is a set of core beliefs and values that:
¢ Resilience

Reciprocity

Reflectiveness

Resourcefuiness

Respectfulness

Readiness

Role Model

Equal Opportunities Policy

The Trustees recognise that equal opportunities should be an integral part of good practice within the
workplace. The Academy aims to establish equal opportunities in all areas of its activities including creating a
workplace environment in which the contribution and needs of all people are fully valued.

Disabled Persons

The Trustees recognise their responsibility under disability legislation in relation to disabled students and
employees and accessibility, in order to ensure that disabled students and employees do not receive less
favourable treatment. The policy of the Academy is to support the recruitment and retention of pupils and
employees with disabilities by making resources available and through training and career development, and
supports this by adapting the physical environment where practicable and reasonable.

Public Benefit

The principle object of the company is to operate Aston University Engineering Academy Birmingham to
advance for public benefit, for pupils of different abilities between the ages of 14 and 19, with an emphasis on
engineering. The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the Charities Commission general guidance on
public benefit when establishing the Academy's aims and objectives.
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Curriculum

The curriculum at a UTC is significantly different to that of a standard main stream school, in that as well as
undertaking knowledge and skills in the core subjects, students spend 40% of their time in specialist subjects of
Science, Engineering and/or Business. These courses are designed to blend academic and technical learning,
driven by the input and needs of employers and universities.

Our new Year 9 curriculum is no exception and was tailor designed to provide a distinct ‘Discovery based’
curriculum, in which students are both transitioned from KS3 towards readiness of GCSEs, whilst widening their
breadth and depth of technical subjects. This additional year allows a greater opportunity to embed these
technical skill earlier as well as ensure that prior gaps in literacy and numeracy are both addressed and
accelerated.

KEY STAGE 3 CURRICULUM

Acadomic Core Technical Core Widor Qualifications Options
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KEY STAGE 5 PATHWAYS.
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' TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 (cont'd)

Achievements and Performance

Destinations

Since AUEA'’s first graduates in July 2014, the UTC has led the way nationally with the destination of students
into STEM based careers and education. In the 2019/20 financial period this success increased with 100% of
students entering University, apprenticeships and employment. There was a significant rise in the number of
students moving on into Higher Education and specifically those attending STEM courses. Due to COVID-19 a
cancellation of many Apprenticeships resulted in both a reduction of those choosing Apprenticeships and an
increase in those going to University. The Impact of COVID-19 also resulted in more students selecting to stay
local and are benefiting from our sponsor, with 40% of students attending HE choosing Aston University. With 6
years of sustained destinations, in 2019/20 the graphs below demonstrate the outstanding performance of the
UTC over time and growing opportunities for our young people.

2019/20 Destinations by Type

& University

mApprenticeships :
M Employment ;
®FE !
® NEETS '

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

» Aston UniSixth Form Urivessity Destination @ Nationat Average |
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Aston University Engineering Academy (AUEA) was inspected by OfSTED in April 2018 and was judged to be
overall ‘Requires Improvement’ with Aston University Sixth Form being rated as Good. The trust and UTC
leadership were very disappointed in the downgrading of the UTC grading and since have embarked on an
accelerated improvement journey. This has included securing strong staffing in all areas, raising impact at a
middle leadership level and a strong focus on differentiation including Challenge and supporting SEND
students. Consequently, the UTC’s SEF’s evaluates the UTC as good in all areas with Sixth form and Personal
development being Outstanding.

COVID-19 Impact 1

The UTC had hoped for a section 5 visit in 2019/20 or early 2020/21, however, an additional issue of COVID-19
is the current cancellation of all Ofsted visits. This means disappointingly it is unlikely that the UTC’s grading will
change even in 2020/21.

The two year old inspection report can be seen at http://www.ofsted.gov.uk/inspection-reports/find-inspection-
report/provider/ELS/138222 . However the summary of key findings for parents and pupils are as follows:

Summary of key findings for parents and pupils

This is a school that requires improvement

@ Over a number of years, pupils’ progress has ® While it is improving, pupils’ progress from
suffered as a result of turbulence in staffing. when they join the school, across a range of
Recently, teaders have ensured that a full, subjects, including mathematics, English,
spedialist teaching team is in place. scence and languages requires improvement.

® leaders are improving the quality of teaching ® Leaders have not made sure that the
over time. However, teaching is not yet good curricutum for post-16 students fully meets
and improvements have not had enough time their needs. Students who study for a single A
to ensure that pupils’ progress is good overall. level atongside their BTEC engineering

qualification make weak progress in these

® Teachers do not consistently meet the learming .
academic courses.

needs of pupils who have spedal educational
needs (SEN) and/or disabilities.

The school has the following strengths

® Students’ progress in their BTEC engineering ® Many pupils leaving Year 11 go on to STEM-
courses In the sixth form is exceptional and related destinations as a result of their strong
improving year on year. outcomes in this area.

® The vast majority of students leaving the sixth 8 Leaders’ work to develop pupils’ personal
form go on to sdence, technology, engineering development and welfare is effective. Pupils’

and mathematics (STEM) related destinations. behaviour is good.
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COVID-19 iImpact 2

Due to lockdown and UK school closures no examinations occurred in 2019/20 and instead students were
issued with a revised grade initially based on an externally calculated algorithm. As highlighted in the press, as
an inner city school, AUEA saw significant number of students negatively impacted by this process and it was
not until the reversal to Centre accessed grades that a true reflection of the student outcomes was achieved. At
Post 16, by April 2020, the vast majority of students had already nearly completed their technical qualifications
and consequently all of these students were able to finish and gain excellent grades.

SKILLS FOR THE FUTURE
As well as the academic outcomes, the key benefit of attending a UTC is the skills for the future, generated by
our employer projects, business ethos, core values of our 7 Rs as well as our multicultural community.

Combined Cadet Force

In May 2017, AUEA was awarded the privilege of a school based Cadet force contingent by the DFE’s CEP 500
programme. Launching in September 2017 AUEA with a target of 30 students, by December AUEA’s cadet
force was over 100 strong. In 2019/20 the size of the cadet force was over 130.

AUEA has 5 staff (excluding SSI) of which 4 have commissions. Students follow a full and varied programme
with additional extra-curriculum activities in the form of visits/trips, e.g. to the National Memorial Arboretum and
RAF Cosford Museum. AUEA CCF also holds an annual Remembrance parade and service attended by all
students and staff.

Support and acknowledgement from the parents/carers has been fantastic, as they know how much of an
impact the CCF has with the Cadets.

Wider Skills ,

A key differential of studying at a UTC is the role of employers, enhanced placements and wider skills.

COVID-19 Impact 3

With the UTC closed as part of the national lockdown and school closures on 25" March 2020, the vast majority
of events, placements and employer interactions were cancelled/postponed. This included cancellation of any
trips and visits along with all external sports fixtures and competitions. With 2020/21 being a similar story, there
is a real concern and risk that many cohorts in the UTC will not have the unique and advantageous wider
curriculum opportunities of attending a UTC.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The board of trustees has established a risk management strategy and risk register and has assessed the risks
impacting on the academy.

The key financial risk that has been identified and is being monitored and managed, is a failure to maintain
strong financial health to support the development priorities of the academy. This is being mitigated
through the implementation and monitoring of the five-year plan agreed by the board of trustees, close
monitoring and intervention on student numbers which influence the funding of the academy, and high level
financial guidance and support provided by AUEAs sponsor, Aston University. The SLT has implemented a
number of improvements to internal control, especially in the operational areas and in relation to the control of
finance, with advice and assistance from colleagues from the Finance Department of Aston University and from
the Auditors.

Maintaining high standards and excellent levels of student achievement are two of the academy's key
performance related risks, which are challenging given the diverse backgrounds of the pupil intake, and the SLT
are taking positive action to mitigate these risks through close monitoring and appropriate interventions.

COVID-19 Impact 4

Benchmarking data undertaken on all students as they arrive at the UTC demonstrated that the 2019/20 Year
11 was both the brightest year group ever at AUEA and that students would achieve the highest summer results
for the UTC (with subjects being either inline or ahead of national average). This would have been key evidence
to Ofsted on the success of the UTC and justification for change of grade. The cancellation of examinations in
summer 2020 means that no external data will be counted. Although this will not impact on students due to
accurate/strong Centre accessed grades, it has increased the risk to the UTC.
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Another risk highlighted is failure to recruit and retain staff with the appropriate skills and experience, which is
mitigated through the adoption of appropriate marketing of the academy, effective staff induction and
performance review processes and a staff benefits scheme.

Covid-19 Impact 5

Although some financial benefits have been seen from the UTC closure, with saving in utilities costs and a
partial examination rebate, the UTC had to make sudden adaptations to its building, curriculum and facilities to
enable the re-opening in summer 2020. Significant additional costs occurred with protective screens / new
washing facilities and creation of additional temporary classrooms to facilitate bubble rooms.

The high tech nature of the UTC, meant that that much of the cloud-based infrastructure required for online
learning was already in place, resulting in a fairly seamless transition from face to face to home working for
staff, yet the lack of online access for some students proved the biggest barrier to learning. Consequently, the
true negative impact of COVID-19 is still to be understood. This widening digital divide between inner-city
students and schools in more affluent areas as well as the significant catch up required from lost learning time,
means there is never been more of a need for the enhanced wider skills that the UTC provides.

Key Financial Performance Indicators 2020 2019
Pupil numbers (per Census) 684 614
Staff costs as a % of revenue income received from ESFA 76% 76%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 74% 71%
Capital expenditure per pupil (£) £197 £150
Teaching Staff : Pupil Ratio 1:18 1:17

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Directors has a reasonable expectation that AUEA have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of
the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial Review

The income resources for the year of £4,632k (2019: £4,111k) consist of revenue grants of £4,568k (2019:
£3,976k) from the ESFA, which includes £3,972k (2019: £3,569k) of GAG, £133k (2019: £128k) of Pupil
Premium, £200k (2019: £200k) Transitional Funding and £301k of other DfE/ESFA income (2019: £79k). The
remainder of the incoming resources is made up of £7k (2019: £19k) for SEN support, other grants (inc.
Erasmus) of £4k (2019: £7k), capital grants of £16k (2019: £54k), bank interest of £3k (2019: £4k) and other
income of £34k (2019: £51k).

The expenditure of £4,692k (2019: £4,228k), detailed in Notes 7, 8 and 9, consists of educational costs £3,185k
(2019: £2,829k), depreciation £295k (2019: £283k), support costs including non-educational cost-of-sales £815k
(2019: £734k), premises costs of £289k (2019: £273k), technology costs of £63k (2019: £88k) and governance
costs of £45k (2019: £21k).

Financial Performance can best be measured with reference to the movement in the Restricted and
Unrestricted Income Funds as shown on the Balance Sheet as this excludes the movement in the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the Restricted Fixed Asset Fund. This shows a surplus for the year
of £265k (2019: £203k).

Financial management at the Academy is strong, therefore, with the Academy exceeding its target student
numbers by 70 students in autumn 2019. This resulted in extra in year GAG funding of £403k.

The Academy cleared all of its historic debt for PNA by February 2019 and has achieved a positive revenue
reserves position as at 31st August 2020, excluding the Fixed Asset and Pension Reserves, subject to receipt of
adequate government funding. The cost base has been rationalised to ensure expenditure within budget in
2020/21 but employment costs continue to rise and need to be matched by increased government funding.

Aston University has continued to support the Academy through flexible recharge payment terms to allow the
Academy to retain sufficient cash to meet future obligations. Since December 2018, however, the Academy has
succeeded in reducing outstanding payroll debt from up to 90 days’ credit to less than 30 in 2019/20 and this
looks sustainable for the immediate future.
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Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies

As an Academy funded directly by the Department of Education, funding streams are considered to be relatively
secure, subject to achievement of pupil numbers, although the Trustees recognise government policy and
overall funding levels represent an ongoing external risk to be managed.

The Trustees have a risk management strategy and policy which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Academy
endeavours to manage its finances to ensure a healthy level of reserves sufficient to cover unforeseen
circumstances and to use prudently as a part of its longer term financial plan.

The Academy’s financial objective is to sustain strong finances with flexible resource management and excellent
value for money:

® the Academy sets ambitious annual recruitment, income and surplus targets.

¢ it makes annual and longer term financial forecasts of income and expenditure.

* it maintains financial health through effective, consultative and transparent planning systems.

¢ it has adopted flexible financial planning to meet the development needs of the Academy.

Reserves

All the income and expenditure is accounted for in three Reserves. The net deficit across all three Reserves in
the year was £591k (2019: deficit £294k). This was due to LGPS charges and provisions totalling £696k (2019:
£306k).

The Restricted General Reserve in which the educational activities are accounted has a deficit of £461k in the
year (2019: deficit £103k), including the increase in LGPS deficit of £696k (2019: deficit £306k), and a
cumulative deficit of £1,162k (2019: £701k).

The Unrestricted Reserve is where fund raising and non-educational activities are accounted. It has a £30k
balance as at 31 August 2020 (2019: £nil). This reserve can be used for any purpose if the General Reserve is
not in deficit.

The Fixed Asset Reserve is where the capital expenditure of the Academy is accounted. The movements on
this reserve represent additions and in-year depreciation on fixed assets mostly gifted to AUEA on start-up. The
net movement in the year is a deficit of £160k (2019: £191k) represented mainly by the £295k (2019: £283k)
depreciation charge. This reserve can only be used to fund capital activities.

The Academy has no funds held on medium or long term deposit. At present, with interest rates historically low,
cash is being retained in the Academy’s current account which is free of charge and earns a small amount of
interest.

As at the year-end, cash held of £618k (2019: £304k), of which £275k (2019: £224k) is effectively owed to
Aston University as payroll debt. Thus a modicum of free reserves have been generated for the first time in
AUEA's history.

Investment Policy

All investments are made in accordance with the policy of the trust. The trust's policy on investments are one of
minimum risk with all investments being held with the trust's bankers. The trust will nevertheless seek to
maximise interest receipts within this arrangement. This policy will be reviewed in the year ending 31 August
2021. Investments are made with regard to Charity Commission guidance in relation to investments.

The Board of Trustees has established a risk management strategy and risk register and has assessed the
risks impacting on the Academy.

The key financial risk that has been identified and is being monitored and managed, is failure to maintain
strong financial health to support the development priorities of the Academy. This is being mitigated
through the implementation and monitoring of the five-year plan agreed by the Board of Trustees, close
monitoring and intervention on student numbers which influence the funding of the Academy, and high level
financial guidance and support provided by the Academy's sponsor, Aston University. The SLT have
implemented a number of improvements to internal control, especially in the operational areas and in relation to
the control of finance, with advice and assistance from colleagues from the Finance Department of Aston
University and from the External Auditor.
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Investment Policy (cont'd)

Maintaining high standards and excellent levels of student achievement are two of the Academy's key
performance related risks, which are challenging given the diverse backgrounds of the pupil intake and the SLT,
are taking positive action to mitigate these risks through close monitoring and appropriate interventions. Another
risk highlighted is failure to recruit and retain staff with the appropriate skills and experience which is mitigated
through the adoption of appropriate marketing of the Academy, effective staff induction and performance review
processes and a staff benefits scheme.

Fundraising
To date, AUEA has not embarked on fundraising activities. However, this is likely to change in future with the
growth of the alumni community.

Plans for Future Periods
® Secure strong COVID-19 recovery in learning for students.
Increase the capacity of the UTC through further adaption of the building to facilitate new learning spaces.
Join a MAT in line with DFE requirements.
Secure Ofsted redesignation to Good/Outstanding.
Develop external options for building and UTC expansion.

Funds held on behalf of others

The Academy administers the 16-19 years-old Bursary Fund on behalf of the ESFA represented by income of
£56k (2019: £60k). It also collects and holds funds paid in advance of trips, events and activities, some of which
are funded by grants. As these amounts are relatively small they are included in other creditors.

Auditor
Insofar as the trustees are aware:
e there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and
e the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The auditors, UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP, are willing to continue in office and resolution appoint
them will be proposed at the annual general meeting.

The trustees report incorporating the strategic report was approved by order of the board of trustees on 8
December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Nell Seott

Neil Scott (Dec 11, 2020 18:14 GMT)

Mr Neil Scott
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Aston University Engineering
Academy (AUEA) Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However,
such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Aston University Engineering Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Principal is also
responsible for reportjng to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees formally met five times during the period —
three meetings were held virtually due to the Covid-19 restrictions. Attendance at meetings of the board was as
follows:

Trustee Date Total Total %
Appointed | Possible | Attended | Attended

Richard Billingham 13.3.17 7 6 86%
Michael Coulson 1.8.19 7 6 86%
Alison Davies 31.6.19 7 7 100%
Dr Antonio Fratini 1.8.19 7 5 71%
Aman Gill-Knobbs 1.8.19 7 6 86%
Rachael Grant 27.3.18 7 6 86%
Dr Paul Harper 1.8.12 7 7 100%
Lee Harvey 1.9.20 7 6 86%
Peter Hazzard 1.8.16 7 7 100%
Tracy Linton 9.1.15 7 4 57%
Dan Locke-Wheaton 1.8.12 7 7 100%
Colin Parker 1.1.16 7 4 57%
Sarah Plumb 1.8.19 7 6 86%
Dr lain Roche 1.1.16 7 5 71%
Neil Scott 1.3.15 7 7 100%
Richard Toy 1.11.17 7 6 86%
TOTAL 112 95 85%

The University’s Director of Governance, John Walter, is the Secretary to the Board and he attended all
meetings. The Academy’s Business Manager, Amanda Kaye, also attended meetings. Members of the Senior
Leadership Team attended meetings by invitation to brief Trustees on matters of strategic importance.

Trustees bring a range of skills and experience to the Board including risk management, audit, governance,
accountancy/financial, academic performance management (including experience of secondary schools),
project management and senior management within complex organisations in the private and public sectors.

This year we welcomed the following new trustees, all for four-year terms of office:
® Dr Antonio Fratini, Senior Lecturer in Biomedical Engineering, School of Life and Health Sciences, and
Aman Gill-Knobbs, Head of Business Strategy and Administration, School of Engineering and Applied
Science, both at Aston University, as sponsor governors;



ASTON UNIVERSITY ENGINEERING ACADEMY BIRMINGHAM 20
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 ‘

Governance {(cont'd)
* Michael Coulson, elected representative of the AUEA teaching staff; and
® Lee Harvey and Sarah Plumb, elected representatives of parents.

The Board was saddened to learn of the sudden and tragic death of Colin Parker, Head at King Edwards VI
Aston School and Trustee of AUEA, on 26 October 2020. Colin had been an enthusiastic supporter and
advocate of AUEA and was well known for his dedication to helping headteachers across Birmingham,
especially those that were newly appointed. He will be sadly missed.

Members of the Board were invited to rate their individual competencies against the NGA’s model skills matrix
which maps on to the DFE’s Competency Framework. The revised skills matrix was ranked according to
priority. It indicated that the current membership possesses all the skills required by the Governing Board. The
matrix did highlight some skills gaps for individual trustees and they were encouraged to take advantage of the
training opportunities listed on the AUEA’s Firefly Governors’ portal including: ALPS Data on-line training
(ALPS is a data analysis tool which helps teachers and governors understand and influence the performance
of individual and groups of students); Ofsted 2019 (an overview of the new Ofsted Framework); and a range of
on-line training, including modules for School Governor induction, School Performance Data, and Finance for
New Governors.

The Board approved a schedule of work for the Trustee Board and its Strategy Forums for 2019/20, which
helped to ensure that they fulfilled their terms of reference and that all necessary work was completed
according to schedule.

The Board agreed formally to adopt the model Code of Governance developed by Birmingham City Council. All
Trustees and attendees of Board and Strategy Forum meetings are required to comply with the Code of
Conduct, including the declaration of interests and adherence to the seven principles of public life.

The Board holds the Principal to account through financial performance and management data of the
Academies. This is benchmarked against other national statistics and UTC data to ensure that the Academies
are operating and performing in line with others. For example, the Board considered the UHY Benchmarking
Report 2018/19 and UHY AUEA Benchmarking Report 2018/19.These indicated that the AUEA was bucking
the national trend in having above average per pupil funding and a reasonable surplus, although it had no
historic reserves.

Effective oversight of the academy trust funds is achieved through:
® The scheme of delegation which identifies the delegated financial responsibilities and reporting.
¢ The Leadership and Finance Forum which met four times this year.
® Regular meetings between the Principal and the Chair of the Trust Board.

The Board regularly reviews the Academy Trust's strategic risk register and the actions being taken to mitigate
the risks and is satisfied that the Executive is addressing the identified risks effectively. Some of the risks were
being impacted negatively by Covid-19.

The principal strategic tasks, risks and challenges faced by the Board of Trustees in 2019/20 included the
following.

i}  The most significant challenge this year for the Academy Trust Board and the Executive was in addressing
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and the associated government advice for the operation of the
AUEA. The Board met more frequently to receive reports on efforts to ensure that the health, safety and
well-being of students, staff and visitors was maintained, during the periods when the operation of the
AUEA was severely restricted and also when opening was extended. The Board was satisfied that the
Executive had undertaken a detailed and thorough risk assessment and had developed a comprehensive
plan for extending the opening of the AUEA with appropriate care and diligence. The Board thanked the
Principal and the Executive for the strong and positive leadership they had shown in responding to the
Covid-19 crisis, and also the staff of the Academy in responding so quickly and professionally in adapting
to the new working environment and for the care and excellent support they were providing to students in
very difficult circumstances.
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i)

ii)

vi)

Another related challenge was in dealing with the impact of Covid-19 on external examinations and the
government's U turn on centre assessed grades. The Board received a report in September 2020
outlining the measures taken by the Academy to ensure a fair and rigorous assessment process for this
year's external examinations, which included extensive staff training (especially unconscious bias training),
mentoring, monitoring and moderation of marking. Three different standards of data analysis were used to
review the marking standards, and extensive work was carried out to investigate and resolve anomalies.
Detailed records of the evidence-based approach adopted had been retained to demonstrate the rigour of
the process. The staff were disappointed that the genuine improvement in students’ examination
performance would be somewhat masked by the impact of Covid-19 and the government’'s assessment U
turn.

The Chair and Principal gave regular detailed reports to the Board on progress with investigating
opportunities for the AUEA to form a new, or to join an existing, MAT or equivalent collaborative
organisational structure. Discussions took place with a number of organisations to identify possible
synergies and areas of complementary collaboration. The Board agreed that it was important to ensure
that any decision to join a MAT or collaborative organisational structure is in the very best interests of the
Academy’s beneficiaries, including students and employers. The Board considered a proposal that, in
order to enhance and strengthen the technical education offer in the West Midlands, a new University
Technical College (UTC) focused Multi Academy Trust (MAT) be established in the West Midlands,
incorporating existing UTCs and future free schools with an overarching aim to provide through education
the skills to underpin the Local Industrial Strategy. The proposal had been developed by WMG who, with
the Baker Dearing Trust, were driving this opportunity with the DfE. The four UTCs that would initial
comprise the new Mercia Academies University Trust (MAUT) were the AUEA, Health Futures UTC,
WMG Academy Coventry and WMG Academy Solihull. The proposals had been supported-in principle by
the sponsoring universities of the existing West Midlands UTCs including the University of Warwick, Aston
University and the University of Wolverhampton. A project steering group, had been formed with
membership from across the three existing UTC Trust Boards, which would oversee the establishment of
the MAUT. A formal proposal and supporting documentation to bring the Health Futures (HF), Aston, and
WMG UTCs into the MAUT had been submitted to the DfE (4.9.2). The AUEA Board (22.9.20) resolved to
endorse proposals for the AUEA to join the MAUT, as being the best option currently open to the
Academy for its long-term development and sustainability; and to recommend to the Members of AUEA
that, after appropriate scrutiny, they approve subsequent contracts and/or agreements following approval
of this proposal, and that AUEA should proceed to join the new MAUT. The DfE was currently considering
the MAUT proposals in discussion with the project steering group.

The Board was pleased to note that the planned increase in student numbers 2019/20, including a new
Year 9 cohort, has been achieved resulting in a higher surplus. The Academy successfully submitted a
business case to the ESFA for positive PNA (Pupil Number Adjustment) for the student numbers in excess
of this year’s funded student population.

Despite the intense national and regional competition, the Board was pleased to note the success in
recruiting and retaining quality teachers in shortage subjects such as mathematics, engineering and
science.

The Board has received regular reports from the Principal and Executive on efforts to achieve consistently
high student attainment, particularly in relation to Key Stage 4 cohort and the mixed results for Key Stage 5
which were outstanding for BTEC but below national average for A’ Level. This task had been made even
more challenging for both staff and students with the introduction of the new curriculum and examinations.
The Board was briefed on how the Executive tracked quality assurance processes, including monitoring
though learning visits and metrics the individual performance of staff and students, and measuring the
effectiveness of the feedback given, and where necessary making interventions to address
underperformance.
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vii) The Board has been overseeing the Academy’s efforts to move from its current Ofsted rating of “Requires
improvement”. The Board regularly received reports from the SLT on progress with the action plans which
aim:

® To secure long-term staffing stability in all subjects so that pupils benefit from a settled, specialist
teaching team.

* To improve teachers’ skills so that pupils’ progress from their starting points improves, especially in
mathematics, English, science, and languages teachers better meet the needs of pupils who have
SEN and/or disabilities.

e To review the curriculum for post-16 students so that their progress in the A level part of the course
matches the exceptional progress made in the vocational element of their study programme.

The Board received a presentation from Aman Gill on a Governor's Ofsted training session, including an
update on the new Ofsted Framework, which she had recently attended.

viii) The Board received a briefing on the DfE Report following its visit on 9" December 2019. Target areas
identified for the next DfE visit included; a) to improve progress and outcomes in English; and b) to
improve progress and outcomes in all A level subjects. Recommendations for action prior to the next visit
were also discussed.

The Board received reports on progress with implementing the Trustee Board Action Plan which continues
to address the areas for enhancement identified in the External Governance Review undertaken by
George Craig, National Leader of Governance (22nd June 2018), as well as promoting the adoption of
best governance practice and standards.

ix) The Board approved the proposed 2020/21 budget which will deliver a surplus of £123,000 to be achieved
largely through increased student recruitment and retention. This anticipated growth in student numbers is
felt to be achievable in the face of buoyant demand, despite the challenges imposed by Covid-19.

The Leadership and Finance Forum (LFF) is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its primary
purpose is to review and agree the key finance, resource and organisational matters of the Academy, and to
act as an Audit Committee. The Forum provides challenge and support to the Principal and the Leadership
team in relation to the following AUEA policy areas: Finance, procurement and audit; HR, including staff
recruitment, remuneration and performance management; student recruitment; Health and Safety and Facilities
Management; IT and Data management, including GDPR; and Risk Management and Business Continuity.
LFF has established and monitors Key Performance Indicators to ensure effective leadership and prudent
financial management of the Academy, reporting regularly and raising issues to the Board of Trustees. LFF
increasingly uses national and UTC sector data to benchmark the performance of the Academy and to ensure
that is operating and performing in line with like institutions.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Date Total Total %
Appointed | Possible | Attended | Attended

Richard Billingham 13.03.17 4 4 100%
Alison Davies 27.05.19 4 4 100%
Aman Gill-Knobbs 1.8.19 1 1 100%
Peter Hazzard 1.8.16 4 3 75%
Tejinder Malhi 1.6.17 4 2 50%
Richard Toy 1.11.17 4 3 75%
TOTAL .21 17 81%

The secretary to the Board of Trustees in also the secretary to LFF.
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Richard Billingham, the University's Executive Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development,
Chairs the LFF and Tejinder Malhi, EAS Financial Partner from the University, is a co-opted independent LFF
member (who is not a member of the Board of Trustees) to strengthen the professional financial expertise of
the membership. LFF has been further strengthened with the appointment of Alison Davies, Director of
Finance at Aston University. '

The Board of Trustees agreed to approve revisions to the terms of reference and membership for the
Leadership and Finance Forum to include the functions of an audit committee. Staff from the Academy are
excluded from the membership of the Forum in view of the need for an independent audit function; however,
the Principal, Business Manager and the Facilities Manager are in attendance at meetings.

UHY Hacker Young attended 24 November 2020 meeting of the LFF to present the External Auditor's
Management Letter, which made some minor recommendations but provided clean audit opinions on both the
financial statements and use of funds audits subsequently noted by the main Trustee Board on 8 December.
LFF subsequently received reports on Executive actions taken to address the recommendations.

LFF received termly reports from the internal auditors (DRB Management Ltd) and received reports on
Executive actions taken to address DRB’s recommendations.

LFF received regular reports on health and safety arrangements at the Academy, noting that no RIDDOR
incidents had occurred during the year. The AUEA Covid-19 lockdown had presented a number of challenges
and resulted in the Facilities Manager having to prioritise time to include risk assessing the building, services
and coordinating practical aspects that were necessary to ensure the safety and welfare of staff and students
upon return given the social distancing and cleaning requirements. A Business Recovery and Continuity team
was set up by the Principal in May to start planning for the staff and student return. A Readiness to Open Risk
Assessment and Checklist was agreed by the Principal to capture and mitigate as many foreseeable risks as
possible. All Building Statute Inspections were up-to-date. The building layout had been assessed for Covid-19
social distancing, class bases and offices laid out to accommodate this and cleaning stations with clinical
disinfectant supplied at strategic locations for staff use. Sinks had been installed externally for Staff and
Students to allow washing of hands before entering the facility and additional hand sanitizers were also
strategically placed for staff, students and visitors’ use. Screens had been installed at Reception, the Point and
in the LDC to protect staff who might need to deal with people in closer proximity. All staff members were now
aware of the importance of reporting and logging accidents, and of the location of the accident book (ie in the
First Aid room). Home Working Assessments had been issued to all staff for completion whilst working from
home during the Covid-19 lockdown, this was intended to focus minds on the correct seating and set-up for
Display Screen Equipment.

The Principal’s Performance Review Committee, comprising Neil Scott, Richard Billingham and Dr Paul
Harper, met to review the Principal's performance and made a recommendation on his remuneration to the
Board.

Governor Training and Briefing Provided in 2019/20

e A presentation by the Principal of the new Firefly Governors Website (September 2019), which would
replace the former site on Bluesky. The new website offered considerably more functionality, including a
training platform for governors, a repository for Board and Forum papers, links to resources, and a facility
for on-line discussions. Governor training resources included: a list of the training provided by Birmingham
City Council in 2019/20; Alps Data on-line training (ALPS is a data analysis tool which helps teachers and
Governors understand and influence the performance of individual and groups of students); Ofsted 2019
(an overview of the new Ofsted Framework); and a range of on-line training, including modules for School
Governor induction, School Performance Data, and Finance for New Governors. Individual members were
encouraged to take advantage of the governor development and training opportunities listed above.
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* In September 2019, the Assistant Principal Learner Progress and Development and the Vice Principal,
provided a detailed analysis of AUEA Key Stage 4 and 5 examination results for 2018/19 and action plans
to improve performance going forward.

® |n December 2019, the Board received a presentation from the Assistant Principal Learner Progress and
Development on the Executive’s efforts to improve the students’ personal development, behaviour and
welfare. They also received a presentation from the Director of Sixth Form on how the Executive’s efforts
to improve Sixth Form Students’ performance and outcomes.

e At the Trust Board away day (January 2020) topics discussed included safeguarding and options for the
future of the AUEA and MAT developments.

* |n January 2020, the Trustee Board received a presentation from the Curriculum Area Leaders for English,
on the work of the team in enhancing the quality of student education.

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer the Principal has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, which is becoming an increasing priority as budgets tighten. Reports are made to
the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of applicable benchmarking
data and review of contracts exceeding £10,000.

Value for money has been delivered during the year, including by:
- o Working within the network of UTCs to help and support future development and effectiveness of

education in STEMM, of which the TEEP project is one example.

¢ Collaborating closely with Aston University, the Trust's sponsor, which provides a range of cost-effective
services, including Human Resources and Payroll, and provides access to sporting and social facilities on
the University campus;

® Expansion of the relationship with Aston University for the deployment of undergraduate placement
students as student mentor in Mathematics and as finance clerks, reducing the need to fill vacancies with
employed or agency staff.

¢ Re-tendering of the washroom services contract in March 2020, when competitive pressures resulted in
renewal with the established supplier for a new 3-year period at £8k p.a. instead of £11k, with a saving of
£9k overall.

¢ Re-tendering of the waste management services contract for weekly collection, enabling the Academy to
move to a more complex food and mixed recycling contract wih a saving sufficient to fund segregated
disposal bins within over 30 classrooms, offices and corridor areas.

¢ Re-tendering of the contract for photocopiers to a firm also servicing Aston University, enabling AUEA to
make a £4k saving overall and to benefit from technical support provided by the University.

e Saving of a third of the cost of the Academy’s mobile phones for staff and educational visits by changing
supplier.

® Rigorous purchasing practice by routine use of price comparison sites and challenging suppliers preferred
to match competitors’ prices.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Aston University
Engineering Academy Trust for the period ending 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and financial statements. Termly reports are received from the Academy'’s internal auditors, Drb Ltd. by
LFF which monitors corrective action and progress relating to recommendations made. Due to the Covid-19
emergency, however, Drb’'s planned inspection and report for March 2020 were cancelled and compensated
for in July. Drb Ltd has also provided a summary Internal Scrutiny Report for the ESFA in response to a new
requirement this year.
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Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees and the LFF have reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together
with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
Board of Trustees is of the view that an effective formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the Academy trust's significant risks was in place for the period ending 31 August 2020 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
LFF and the Board of Trustees. :

The Risk and Control Framework
The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular it includes:

e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports

which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

e regular consideration by the LFF of reports reviewing financial performance against forecasts and of major
purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
¢ identification and management of risks.

LFF agreed that Drb should be re-engaged to carry out termly internal audit visits and to submit termly reports
thereon to the Forum. In 2019/20 testing covered payroll, purchases, contracts, capital contracts, income,
expense claims, petty cash, the accounting system, checking the Academy'’s reporting and budget monitoring.
Staff from the University's Finance Department have continued to advise Academy staff on the development of
the Academy's financial systems and processes.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

e the work of the external auditor;
¢ the work of the internal auditor;
e work and advice from qualified staff from the University Finance Department.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 8 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Neyl Scott ;

Neil Scott (Dec 11, 2020 18:14 GMT) Daniel Locke-Wheaton (Dec 10, 2020 14:12 GMT)

Mr Neil Scott Mr Daniel Locke-Wheaton
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST
2020

As accounting officer of Aston University Academy Birmingham | have considered my responsibility to notify
the academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State. As part of my consideration | have
had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the
board of trustees and the ESFA.

')/ 4

Daniel Locke-Wheaton (Dec 10, 2020 14:12 GMT}

Mr Daniel Locke-Wheaton
Accounting Officer
8 December 2020
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The trustees (who act as governors) of Aston University Engineering Academy Birmingham and are also the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the
Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
® select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
® observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020;
® make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards FRS102 have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mapproprlate to presume that the
academy will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006.They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied
for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 8 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Nl Seott

Neil Scott (Dec 11, 2020 18:14 GMT)

Mr Neil Scott
Chair of Trustees



ASTON UNIVERSITY ENGINEERING ACADEMY BIRMINGHAM 28

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASTON UNIVERSITY ENGINEERING
ACADEMY BIRMINGHAM FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Aston University Engineering Academy Birmingham (the ‘academy
trust') for the year ended 31 August 2020 which comprise Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet
and the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy
trust and the academy trust's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

In our opinion the financial statements:
® give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020, and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then

ended;
e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

® have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP

2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and

applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities

for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in

accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,

including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

e the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
" not appropriate; or : : o '

o the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the academy trust’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASTON UNIVERSITY ENGINEERING
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Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the trustees’ report, governance statement, statement on regularity, propriety and compliance and
statement of trustees responsibilities other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
- opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
® the information given in the trustees’ report (inorporating the strategic report and the trustees’ report) for
the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and
o the strategic report and the trustees’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the trustees’
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees ,

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 27, the trustees (who are also
the directors of the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the effectiveness of
the academy trust’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the trustees.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the academy trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Malcolm Winston

Senior Statutory Auditor

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP, Statutory Auditor
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

8 December 2020



ASTON UNIVERSITY ENGINEERING ACADEMY BIRMINGHAM 31

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ASTON
UNIVERSITY ENGINEERING ACADEMY BIRMINGHAM AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING
AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 July 2020 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to
2020 we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether, the expenditure
disbursed and income received by the academy trust during the year ended 31 August 2020 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to the Aston University Academy Birmingham and the ESFA in accordance with our
engagement letter. Our review has been undertaken so that we might state to the governing body and the
ESFA those matters we are required to state to it in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Aston University Academy
Birmingham and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Aston University Engineering Academy Birmingham's accounting officer
and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Aston University Engineering Academy
Birmingham funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 30 March 2014, and the
Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2019 for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and
_income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to
the authorities which govern them. ‘

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies: Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether, anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year ended 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies: Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by

the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion. _

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the academy trust's income and expenditure. '

Summary of the work undertaken was as follows:

® Analytical review of the academy trust's general activities are within the academy trusts framework of
authorities; A

® Consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officers statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance;

® Review of the general control environment for the academy trust on financial statements and on regularity;
Sample testing of expenditure transactions to ensure the activity is permissible within the academy trust's
framework of authority;

® Confirmation that a sample of expenditure has been appropriately authorised in accordance with the
academy trust's delegated authorities;

® Formal representations obtained from the board of trustees and the accounting officer acknowledging the
responsibilities including disclosing all non compliance with laws and regulations specific to the authorising
framework;
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AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 (cont'd)

Approach (cont'd)

¢ Confirmation that any extra contractual payments such as severance and compensation payments have
been appropriately authorised;
Review of credit card expenditure for any indication of personal use by staff, principal or trustees;
Review of specific terms of grant funding within the funding agreement;
Review of related party transactions for connections with the principal/finance manager or trustees; and
Review of income received in accordance with the activities permitted within the academy trust's charitable
objectives.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year ended 31 August 2020 has not been applied to
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern
them.

AN Rl ney . &“““NV(;QV\M ENE

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

8 December 2020
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020
(Including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2020 2019
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income from:
Donations and capital grants 3 - - 16 16 54
Charitable activities:
- Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations 4 - 4,586 - 4,586 4,024
Other trading activities 5 ‘ 27 - - 27 29
Investment income 6 3 - - 3 4
Total 30 4,586 16 4,632 - 4,111
. Expenditure on:
Raising funds - - - - -
Charitable activities:
- Academy trust's educational
operations 7 - 4,397 295 4,692 4,228
Other - - - - -
Total : - 4,397 295 4,692 4,228
Net income/(expenditure) 30 189 (279) (60) (117)
Transfers between funds 15 - (119) 119 - -
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial loss on defined benefit
pension schemes 26 - (631) - (531) (177)
Net movement in funds 30 (461) (160) (591) (294)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward - (701) 7,218 6,517 6,811
Total funds carried forward 16 30 (1,162) 7,058 5,926 6,517

All of the academy trust's activities derive from acquisitions and continuing operations during the above two
financial periods.
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Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total Net Assets

Funds of the Academy:

Restricted funds
- Fixed asset fund
- Restricted income fund
- Pension reserve
Total Restricted Funds

Unrestricted income fund
Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

Note

12

13

14

26

15
15
15

15

34

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
7,058 7,218
7,058 7,218
176 147
618 304
794 451
(541) (463)
253 (12)
7,311 7,206
7,311 7,206
(1,385) (689)
5,926 6,517
7,058 7,218
223 (12)
(1,385) (689)
5,896 6,517
30 -

30 -
5926 6,517

The financial statements on pages 33 to 54 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 8

December 2020 and signed on their behalf by:

Neyl Stott

Neil Scott (Dec 11, 2020 18:14 GMT)

Mr Neil Scott
Chair of Trustees
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2019
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2020

Note

19
20
21

22

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
430 (236)
(116) (34)
314 (270)
304 574
618 304
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1

Statement of Accounting Policies
A summary of principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. -

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities :
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102) (Charities
SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Aston University Engineering Academy Birmingham meets the definition of a public benefit entity under
FRS 102.

Going Concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company
to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one
year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern,
thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Incoming Resources
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, certainty of
receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability.

e Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an entitlement and are not deferred over the life of
the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the
balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.

e Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable, where receipt is probable and
it can be measured reliably.

e Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount
can be reliably measured.

o Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.
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Incoming Resources (cont'd)
e Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock
and ‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against
‘Income from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading
activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they
are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within
‘Income from other trading activities’.
Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate
fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy
trust's accounting policies.

e Transfers of leasehold property
Leasehold property transferred to the academy trust from the local authority at little or no
consideration will be revalued at fair value in accordance with FRS 102. This value will be
recognised as incoming resources in the Statement of Financial Activities and will be included in the
appropriate fixed assets category and depreciated over the life of the lease.

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to
a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of
each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved
in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that
activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not
attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the
use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges
allocated on the portion of the asset's use.
e Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
¢ Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in
the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.

Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds,
depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
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Tangible fixed assets (cont'd)

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on the cost of tangible fixed assets, to write them down
to their estimated residual values over their expected useful lives. No depreciation is provided on
leasehold land where the lease is more than 20 years The principal annual rates used for other assets

are:
Leasehold land & buildings 2%
Furniture and equipment 10%
Computer equipment and software 20%

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of
fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as foliows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instrument, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 14. Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as
the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than
cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256
of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes.

Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(‘TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credit method. As stated in Note 26, the TPS is a multi employer scheme with no underlying assets to
assign between employers. Consequently the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.
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Pensions Benefits (cont'd)

The LGPS is a multi funded employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are
updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service
costs and the costs of the scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They
are included as part of staff costs as incurred.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the
scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the
period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income
on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised
gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees. Restricted fixed asset funds are
resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the asset
acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for
Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.



ASTON UNIVERSITY ENGINEERING ACADEMY BIRMINGHAM 40
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020 (cont'd) “

Critical areas of judgement

The critical judgements that the Trustees have made in the process of applying the Academy Trust's
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the statutory
financial statements are discussed below:

The critical areas of judgement are accounting for government grants, accounting for the write down of
assets through depreciation and accounting for the pension lability. Government grants are accounted
for as restricted funds. The pension liability is assessed by an independent actuarial valuation.
Deprecation rates are based on the expected life of the asset.

In assessing whether there have been any indicators of impairment assets, the Trustees have
considered both external and internal sources of information such as market conditions, counterparty
credit ratings and experience of recoverability. There have been no indicators of impairments identified
during the current financial year.

Agency Arrangements

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments
received from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of
financial activities as the trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The
trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the
statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in
note 28.
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2 GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the academy trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020 (see note 15).

3 DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Devolved formula capital grant - 16 16 49
Other capital grants - - - 5
: - 16 16 54

The income from donations and capital grants was £16,000 (2019: £54,000 of which £nil (2018: £nil) was

unrestricted and £16,000 (2019: £54,000) restricted fixed assets.

4 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST’S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
DfE/ESFA grants
General annual grant (GAG) (note 2) ‘ - 3,972 3,972 3,569
Pupil premium grant - 133 133 128
Teachers pay grant - 43 43 27
Teachers pension grant - 120 120 -
Other DFE/ESFA grants ' - 300 300 252
- 4,568 4,568 3,976
Other Government grants
Special educational needs grant - BCC - 7 7 19
Other grants - Erasmus - - - 7
Other grants - 4 4 18
- 11 11 44
Exceptional Government funding
Coronavirus Job Rentention Scheme - - - -
Coronavirus exceptional support - - - -
Other Coronavirus funding - - . -
Other income from the academy trust's
educational operations - 7 7 4
- 7 7 4

4,586 4,586 4.024

The income from the academy trusts's educational operations was restricted for both 2020 and 2019.
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5 OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

42

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2020 2019 __
£000 £'000 £000 T £'000T
School activities 27 - 27 29
Hire of facilities - - - -
27 - 27 29

The income from other trading activities was £27,000 (2019: £29,000) of which £27,000 (2019: £29,000)

was unrestricted and £nil was restricted (2019: £nil).
6 INVESTMENT INCOME

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank interest received 3 - 3 4
3 - 3 4
The income from the academy trusts's investment income was unrestricted for both 2020 and 2019.
7 EXPENDITURE
[  Non Pay Expenditure | ‘Total Total
Staff Costs Premises Other Costs 2020 2019
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Expenditure on raising funds
Direct costs - - - - -
Allocated support costs - - - - -
Academy'’s educational operations
Direct costs 2,931 - 345 3,276 2,829
Allocated support costs 541 584 291 1,416 1,399
3,472 584 636 4,692 4,228
3.472 584 636 4,692 4,228

The expenditure was £4,692,000 (2019: £4,228,000) of which £4,397,000 (2019: £3,945,000) was

restricted and £295,000 (2019: £283,000) restricted fixed assets.
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation

Fees payable to auditor for:
- audit

- other services

Total
2020
£'000
21
295

7
2

Total
2019
£'000
12
283
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8 CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES Total Total
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Direct costs - educational operations 3,276 2,829
Support costs - educational operations 1,416 1,399
4,692 4,228

Analysis of Support Costs
Support staff costs 541 472
Depreciation 295 283
Technology costs 63 88
Premises costs 289 273
Legal costs - -
Other support costs : 183 262
Governance 45 21
1,416 "~ 1,399

9 STAFF

a Staff costs 2020 2019
Staff costs during the year were: £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 2,431 2,186
Social security costs 255 217
Pension costs 669 472
3,355 2,875
Agency staff costs 117 129

Staff restructuring costs - -
3,472 3,004

b Staff severance payments
There have been no staff restructuring costs in either 2019 or 2020.

¢ Staff numbers
The average number of persons (including School Leadership Team) employed by the Academy
during the year ended 31 August 2020 expressed as whole persons and full time equivalents was

I 2020 ] 2019 ]

Charitable Activities No. FTE No. FTE
Teachers 37 34 37 33
Administration and support 42 32 40 32
Management 4 4 4 4
83 70 81 69

d Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and
employer national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2020 2019

No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 2 1
£70,001 - £80,000 1 1
£100,001 - £110,000 1 1

e Key management personnel
The key management of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior managment
team. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personel for their
services to the academy trust was £512,020 (2019: £382,836).
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10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

11

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an
employment with the academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees receive remuneration
in respect of their contracts of employment as principal and staff and not in respect of their
services as trustees. Other trustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses, from the
Academy Trust in respect of their role as trustees. The value of trustee's remuneration and other
remuneration was as follows:

D Locke-Wheaton (Principal and Trustee)

Remuneration £105,001 - £110,000 (2019: £100,001 - £105,000)
Employers pension contribution £20,001 - £25,000 (2019: £15,001 - £20,000)
S Hancock (Staff Trustee)

Remuneration £25,001 - £30,000 (2019: £35,001 - £40,000)
Employers pension contribution £5,001 - £10,000 (2019: £5,001 - £10,000)
R Grant (Staff Trustee)

Remuneration £25,001 - £30,000 (2019: £20,001 - £25,000)
Employers pension contribution £5,001 - £10,000 (2019: £Nil - £5,000)

During the year ended 31 August 2020 £1,049 (2019: £915) travel, subsistence and educational
expenses were reimbursed to the trustees.

Other related party transactions including trustees are set out in note 27.

TRUSTEES’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect
trustees' and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst
on academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim. The
cost of this insurance is included but not itemised in the Academy’s premium to DfE for the Risk
Protection Arrangement. The total supplementary payment was £11,052 (2019: £12,240).
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12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

»

Leasehold
Land & Furniture & Computer
Buildings Equipment Equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 September 2019 7,845 952 739 9,536
Additions 30 43 62 135
Disposals - - - -
At 31 August 2020 7,875 995 801 9,671
Depreciation
At 1 September 2019 1,084 626 608 2,318
Charged in year ' 157 96 .42 295
Disposals - - - -
At 31 August 2020 1,241 722 650 2,613
Net book value
At 31 August 2020 6,634 273 151 7,058
At 31 August 2019 6,761 326 131 7,218

in September 2012 the Academy's leasehold land and buildings were donated to the Academy by
Birmingham City Council (BCC) on 125 year lease at a pepper corn rent. On 19 August 2013 an existing
use valuation was prepared for the Education and Skills Funding Agency by a firm of Chartered Surveyors
Mouchel that determined the leasehold land and buildings gifted had a depreciated replacement cost value

of £7,767,000.
13 DEBTORS
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Trade debtors - 1
VAT recoverable 36 26
Prepayments and accrued income 140 120
176 147
14 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Trade creditors 136 106
Other creditors 334 275
Accruals 25 32
Deferred income 46 50

541 463
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14 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR (cont'd)

15

Deferred Income

Deferred income at 1 September
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years
Deferred income at 31 August

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
50 42
46 50
(50) (42)
46 50

At the balance sheet date the academy was holding funds received in advance for 2020/21 for the British
Council grant £14,000 (2019: £nil) Erasmus grant £nil (2019: £6,783), Institute of Physics grant £nil (2019:
£500), Resource fees £2,745 (2019: £8,295), Ministry of Defence Combined Cadet Force £6,268 (2019:
£4,169), Ogden Trust grant £nil (2019: £4,325), Rolls Royce Grant £nil (2019: £1,000), Rates Relief
funding £22,400 (2019: £22,050), STEM skills funding £nil (2019: £192), NIC Rebate £nil (2019: £1,750),
Arkwright School funds £nil (2019: £200) and iRail Prize £227 (2019: £680).

FUNDS
The income funds of the academy comprise the following balances of grants to be applied for specific
purposes:
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Incoming Resources Losses & 31 August
2019 Resources Expended Transfers 2020
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Restricted general funds
General annual grant (GAG) (note i) (12) 3,972 (3,618) (119) 223
Other DfE/ESFA grants (note ii) - 596 (596) - -
Other (note iii) - 18 (18) - -
(12) 4,586 (4,232) (119) 223
Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets donation (note iv) 6,525 - (152) - 6,373
DfE/ESFA capital grants (note v) 549 16 (109) - 456
Capital expenditure from GAG (note vi) 132 - (32) 119 219
Other capital grants 12 - (2) - 10
Total restricted funds 7,218 16 (295) 119 7,058
Restricted pension scheme liability
Pension reserve (note vii) (689) - (165) (531) (1,385)
(689) - (165) (531) (1,385)
Total restricted funds 6,517 4,602 (4,692) (531) 5,896
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds (note viii) - 30 - - 30
Total unrestricted funds - 30 - - 30
Total Funds 6,517 4,632 (4,692) (531) 5,926
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15 FUNDS (cont'd)
Notes

i) General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running costs of the academy. Under the funding
agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of

~ GAG that it would carry forward at 31 August 2020 (see note 2).
i) Other DfE/ESFA and local grants are used for the specific purposes intended.

iii) Other restricted general grants include EU-funded projects for collaboration with a technical college

in Austria.

iv) Restricted fixed assets were funded by BCC donating Academy land and buildings on a 125 year

lease at a pepper corn rent.

v) DfE/ESFA capital grants are used for capital additions for educational purposes.
vi) The gross transfer from the restricted general fund to the restricted fixed asset fund of £119,000
(2019: £38,000) represents the total capital expenditure from GAG during the year. The gross

transfer from unrestricted fund to the restricted general fund of £nil (2019: £33,000) represents a

contribution to the restricted general fund deficit.

vii) The pension reserve represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (see note 25).
viii) Unrestricted funds include surpluses from activities for generating income (for example: lettings and
third party event catering, staff secondments, sales of PV electricity, sales of uniform, books and

revision guides and car parking receipts) and any voluntary donations to be spent at the discretion of

the trustees.

Comparative information in respect of the proceeding period is as follows:

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Incoming Resources Losses & 31 August
2018 Resources Expended Transfers 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Restricted general funds
General annual grant (GAG) (note i) (215) 3,569 (3,361) (5) (12)
Other DfE/ESFA grants (note ii) - 407 (407) - -
Other (note iii) - 48 (48) - -
(215) 4,024 (3,816) (5) (12)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets donation (note iv) 6,677 - (152) - 6,525
DfE/ESFA capital grants (note v) 607 49 (107) - 549
. Capital expenditure from GAG (note vi) 116 - (22) 38 132
Other capital grants 9 5 (2) - 12
Total restricted funds 7,409 54 (283) 38 7,218
Restricted pension scheme liability
Pension reserve (note vii) (383) - (129) (177) (689)
(383) - (129) (177) (689)
Total restricted funds 6,811 4,078 (4,228) (144) 6,517
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds (note viii) - 33 - (33) -
Total unrestricted funds - 33 - (33) -
Total Funds 6,811 4,111 (4,228) (177) 6,517
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16 ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:
Fixed R
Pension  General Assets )
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed - - - 7,058 7,058
Current assets 30 - 764 - 794
Current liabilities - - - (541) - (541)
Non current liabilities - - - - -
Pension scheme liability - (1,385) - - (1,385)
30 (1,385) 223 7,058 5,926
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Fund balances at 31 August 2019 are represented by:
Fixed
Pension General Assets
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
. £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed - - - 7,218 7,218
Current assets - - 451 - 451
Current liabilities - - (463) - (463)
Non current liabilities - - - - -
Pension scheme liability - (689) - - (689)
- (689) (12) 7,218 6,517
17 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements - 7
Authorised by trustees, but not yet contracted 7 -
18 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
Operating leases
At 31 August 2020 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases was:
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Operating leases which expire:
. Within one 22 -
. Within two to five years 35 -

57
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19 RECONCILIATION OF NET EXPENDITURE TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

20

21

22

23

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the SOFA) (60) (117)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation (note 12) 295 283
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (16) (54)
Interest receivable (3) (4)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 26) 151 121
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 26) 14 8
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (29) 18
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 78 (491)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 430 (236)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Interest received 3 4
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (135) (92)
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA 16 49
Capital grant funding received from sponsors and others - 5
Net cash used in investing activities (116) (34)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Repayments of borrowing - -
Cash inflows from new borrowing - -
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities - -
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
At 31 Aug At 31 Aug
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Cash in hand and at bank 618 304
Total cash and cash equivalents 618 304
ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT ,
At 1 September Cash At 31 Aug
2019 Flows 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank 304 314 618
Overdraft - - -
304 314 618
Loans within one year - - -
Loans within more than one year - - -
304 314 618
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24

25

26

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any
asset for which a Government capital grant was received, the Academy is required either to re-invest the
proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of the
sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Academy
serving notice, the Academy shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

a) the value at that time of the Academy's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of
the Academy: and

b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the Funding Agreement.

MEMBERS’ LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The academy trust’'s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff which is managed by West Midlands Pension Scheme. Both are defined
benefit schemes.

The total pension cost to the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2020 was £669,000 (2019:
£472,000) of which £391,000 (2019: £235,000) relates to the TPS and £278,000 (2019: £237,000) relates
to LGPS.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2016.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pensions Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies.
All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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26 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consuitation are:

®  employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)

® total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits)
for service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million,
giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

e the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPl. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employers costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £391,000 (2019: £235,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set
out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in a separate trustee administered
funds. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £319,000 (2019: £278,000) of
which employers contributions totalled £278,000 (2019: £237,000) and employees contributions totalled
£41,000 (2019: £41,000). The agreed contributions for future years are on average 16.6% (2019: 16.6%)
for employers and 5.5% (2019: 5.5%) for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding local government pension liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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26 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
Local Government Pension Scheme (cont'd)

Principal Actuarial Assumptions
The major assumptions used by the actuary were:

Discount rate
Salary increases
Pension increase

2020
% per
annum
1.65%
3.20%
2.20%

2019
% per
annum
1.90%
3.65%
2.15%

Sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities were as follows:

Discount rate reduced by 0.1% per annum
Assumed pension increased by 0.1% per annum

" Salary growth increased by 1.0% per annum
Life expectancy at retirement increased by 1 year

2020
Approx
£'000
84

80

4

96

2019
Approx
£'000
52

49

(3)

59

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Longevity at age 65 retiring today
- Men
- Women

Longevity at age 65 retiring in 20 years
- Men
- Women

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equity instruments

Debt instruments

Property

Cash

Other

Total market value of assets

Present value of scheme liabilities
- Funded

- Unfunded

Total liabilities

Deficit in the scheme

2020

years
21.9
241

23.8
26.0

Fair value at

2019
years
20.9
23.2

22.6
251

Fair value at

31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
675 603
177 133

91 82

80 36

179 149
1,202 1,003
(1,202) (1,003)
(1,385) (689)
(2,587) (1,692)
(1,385) (689)

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was a surplus of £103,000 (2019: £67,000).
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26 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

2020 2019
_ £'000 £'000

Current service cost - : 264 204
Past service cost - 25
Interest income (20) (24)
Iinterest cost 34 32
Total operating charge 278 237

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Changes in deficit during the period
Balance at 1 September 2019 689 383
Movement in year:
- Employer service cost (net of employee contributions) 264 204
- Past service cost ' B . 25
- Employer contributions (113) (108)
- Expected return on scheme assets (20) (24)
- Interest cost 34 32
- Actuarial losses 531 177
Deficit in the scheme at 31 August 2020 1,385 689
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 2019 1,692 1,181
Current service cost 264 204
Past service cost - 25
Interest cost 33 32
Contributions by scheme participants oM 41
Benefits paid (1) (1)
Actuarial losses 558 210
Scheme liabilities at 31 August 2020 2,587 1,692
Changes in the fair value of academy's share of scheme assets:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 2019 1,003 798
Expected return on scheme assets 20 24
Actuarial gains 27 33
Contributions by employer 113 108
Benefits paid (1) (1)
Administration Expenses (1)
Contributions by scheme participants 41 41
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 August 2020 1,202 1,003

The estimated value of employer contributions for the year ended 31 August 2021 is £135,000 (2020:
£96,000).
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27

28

29

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the academy trust's operations and the composition of the board of trustees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place
with organisations in which a member of the board of trustees may have an interest. All transactions
involving such organisations are conducted in accordance requirements of the Academies Financial
Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining
their approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement
procedures relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related party transactions
took place in the period of account:

The academy paid Aston University for the services supplied with no profit element to the University as
follows:

HR and payroll services £11,030 (2019: £11,918);

Hire of sports facilities £20,900 (2019: £15,456);

Hire of car park spaces £13,338 (2019: £10,129); and

Hire of conference suite £nil (2019: £773).

Miscellaneous expediture £267 (2019: £nil).

The amounts outstanding at 31 August 2020 are £75 (31 August 2019: £nil).

The academy also received £nil (2019: £580) in respect of transport contributions from Aston University.
The amounts outstanding at 31 August 2020 are £nil (2019: £nil).

Mr D Locke-Wheaton is a director of Titan Partnership Limited. The academy paid Titan Partnership
£2,721 for educational services in 2019/20 (2019: £9,803) and £nil was outstanding at 31 August 2020 (31
August 2019: £4,500).

The element above £2,500 has been provided "at no more than cost" and Titan Partnership has provided
a statement of assurance confirming this.

Mr R Toy is a director of Auctus Infraskills Limited. The academy paid Auctus Infraskills Limited £7,500 for
educational services in 2019/20 (2019: £nil) and £nil was outstanding at 31 August 2020 (31 August 2019:
£nil).

The element above £2,500 has been provided "at no more than cost" and Auctus Infraskills Limited has
provided a statement of assurance confirming this.

In entering into the transactions the trust has complied with the requirements of the Academies
Financial Handbook 2019.

AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary and T-Level bursary funds to students as an agent for the
ESFA. In the accounting period ending 31 August 2020 the trust received £55,741 (2019: £41,796) and
disbursed £57,022 (2019: £46,669) from the fund. An amount of £13,243 (2019: £14,524) is included in
other creditors relating to the undistributed funds that is repayable to the ESFA.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material adjusting or non adjusting events arising after the balance sheet date.



